
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
November 1, 2018 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata 
   
Board Members Absent: Rich Holmer 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Acting Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, Legal Counsel 
      Lynda Hopkins, Sonoma County Supervisor 
      Misty Arias 
      Bert Whitaker, County of Sonoma 
      Michael Celentano, CPA (by phone) 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (6:33 p.m.) 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Marquez de la Plata at 6:33 p.m. 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:34 
p.m.) 


The GM announced that Item V-A (FY 2017-18 Audit items of interest) would be a time-certain item 
scheduled at  7:15 pm. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:35 p.m.) 
 
Director Marquez de la Plata reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Robb-Wilder 
moved to approve the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion carried 
4-0.  The following items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the October 4, 2018 Board Meeting and the October 
24, 2018 Special Board Meeting 


 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 


 
 C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence 


 1







(1) Letter dated October 8, 2018 from California Department of 
Water Resources re 2017 Validated Water Loss Audit Report 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 
 
Public comment was made by County Supervisor Lynda Hopkins regarding the Monte Rio Trails 


Project 
Public comment was made by Bert Whitaker re same. 
Public comment was made by Misty Arias re same. 
Comments were made by District Legal Counsel Robin Donoghue.   
Board questions ensued.  Further public comment was made by Lynda Hopkins, Bert Whitaker 
and Misty Arias. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:52 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-B. (6:52 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re FY 2018-19 1st Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted 


Operating and Capital Expenditures and County Balances.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Board questions and discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 


 
V-C. (7 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re: Resolution 18-15, Authorizing the General Manager 


to Accept the Fiscal Year 2018 Capital Improvement Project, and to Sign and 
Record a Notice of Completion.  The GM provided an overview of this item. Director 
Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 18-15, Authorizing the General Manager to 
Accept the Fiscal Year 2018 Capital Improvement Project, and to Sign and Record a 
Notice of Completion.  Director Marquez de la Plata seconded.  Discussion ensued.  
Comments were made by Legal Counsel Robin Donoghue.  Motion carried 4-0.  


 
V-A (7:15 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Items of Interest on the FY 2017-18 District 


Financial Audit.  Administrative Manager Julie Kenny introduced this item.  District 
Auditor Michael Celentano, CPA, provided an overview of the FY 2017-18 Draft financial 
statements.  Board questions and discussion with Mr. Celentano ensued.  No formal 
action was taken. 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:45 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Water production and sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Russian River Flow 
4. River Lane property sale 
5. Monte Rio Trails Project 
6. 2018 CIP 
7. Guernewood Park Resort 
8. In-House Construction Projects 
9. District Wildfire Preparations 
10. Gantt Chart 
 
Brief discussion ensued. 
 


 2







 3


 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:05 p.m.) 
 
At 8:05 p.m. President Marquez de la Plata announced the items for discussion in Closed 
Session.   
 
** At 8:07 p.m. the Board took a brief recess.  The meeting reconvened at 8:12 p.m. 
At 8:13 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 8:55 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the 
following action was announced: 
 


A. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54957.6): 


 District negotiator: Steve Mack 
 Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 Direction was given to staff. 
 
B. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 - Public Employment: General 


Manager 
 Direction was given to staff. 


 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:56 p.m.) 


 
1. Director Robb-Wilder announced that she would be gone December 12-29, 2018. 
2. Director Marquez de la Plata requested Board member share phone numbers. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:41 p.m.) 
 
1. CIP 2018 Notice of Completion and Bond Closing 
2. Board Elections 
3. FY 2017-18 Final Audit Report 


 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:59 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER (6:33 p.m.)

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:34 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:35 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:52 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:45 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:05 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:56 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


December 6, 2018, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the November 1, 2018 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Resolution 18-16 Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal 


Year Ending June 30, 2018 (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re 2019-2025 Capital Improvement Program (Est. time 20 


min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re CIP 2018 Notice of Completion and project results (Est 


time. 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Election of Board Officers (Est. time 10 min.) 
 


 
VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957(b) - Public Employment: General 


 Manager 
 


 


IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 
 
 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: December 6, 2018 
 
 Subject: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RESOLUTION 18-16, ACCEPTING THE FINAL 


AUDIT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2018 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 Approve Resolution 18-16, Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 


2018. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 (Preparation of the FY 2017-18 Audit cost $8,000.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


Our FY 2017-18 Audit was conducted by Michael Celentano, CPA, the first audit of a two-
year contract with Mr. Celentano.  Mr. Celentano appeared by telephone at the November 
meeting to present to and discuss the draft Audit prepared after his October site visit.  
He will not be at the December meeting; however, the Final Audit contains only minor 
corrections to the draft Audit. 
 
As a reminder, the Audit presents the District's financials using a partial accrual method 
of accounting, which differs from the cash presentation staff prepares for the Board on a 
quarterly basis.   
 
Staff recommends the Board approve Resolution 18-16, Accepting the Final Audit for the 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018.  
 







Resolution No. 18-16 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ACCEPTING THE FINAL 


AUDIT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2018 
 


 WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District is required to have 
annual audits performed relative to the spending of public funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Michael Celentano, CPA provides said auditing service and 
is under contract with the District to perform such audits. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of 
the Sweetwater Springs Water District has reviewed the audit as prepared by 
Michael Celentano, CPA for the year ending June 30, 2018, and accepts the 
information contained therein. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors 
of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, 
at a meeting held on December 6, 2018, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Rich Holmer        
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 


           
      Pip Marquez de la Plata 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 







 


 


                                                         MICHAEL A. CELENTANO 
Certified Public Accountant 


PO Box 206 
530-629-3015                          Willow Creek Ca 95573            maccpa@pacific.net 
To the Management and 
The Board of Directors of 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 
In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements of the business-type activities of Sweetwater 
Springs Water District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, I considered Sweetwater Springs Water District’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sweetwater Springs Water District’s internal control. 
Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sweetwater Springs Water District’s internal 
control. 


My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
However, as discussed below, I identified certain deficiencies in internal control that I consider to be significant 
deficiencies. 


A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. I did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that I consider to be material weaknesses. 


A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. I consider 
the following deficiency in Sweetwater Springs Water District’s internal to be significant deficiency: 


District Structure 


The size of the District’s accounting and administrative staff precludes certain internal controls that would be 
preferred if the office staff were large enough to provide optimum segregation of duties. This situation dictates 
that the Board of Directors remains involved in the financial affairs of the District to provide oversight and 
independent review functions. 


This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Directors, and others 
within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties.  


Very truly yours, 


 


Michael A Celentano 
Certified Public Accountant 


November 1, 2018  


 



mailto:maccpa@pacific.net





  


 
 


                                            MICHAEL A. CELENTANO 
Certified Public Accountant 


PO Box 206 
530-629-3015                          Willow Creek Ca 95573            maccpa@pacific.net 


 


 
 
To the Management and 
The Board of Directors of 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 
I have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of Sweetwater Springs Water District for the 
year ended June 30, 2018. Professional standards require that I provide you with information about my 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the planned 
scope and timing of my audit. I have communicated such information in my letter to you dated November 1, 2018.   
Professional standards also require that I communicate to you the following information related to my audit. 


Significant Audit Findings 


Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 


Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by Sweetwater Springs Water District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. 
No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year. 
I noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements 
in the proper period. 


Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most 
sensitive estimate affecting the District’s financial statements was: 


Management’s estimate of the other postemployment benefits payable and pension liabilities are 
based on industry guidelines and actuarial tables.  I evaluated the key factors and assumptions 
used to develop these other postemployment benefits payable and pension liabilities in 
determining that it is reasonable in relationship to the financial statements taken as a whole 


The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 


Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 


I encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing my audit. 


Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 


Professional standards require me to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of 
audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each 
opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole. 


 



mailto:maccpa@pacific.net





 


 


Disagreements with Management 


For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to my satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the 
auditor’s report. I am pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of my audit. 


Management Representations 


I have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 
letter dated November 1, 2018. 


Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 


In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an 
accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, my professional standards require the consulting accountant to 
check with me to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To my knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants. 


Other Audit Findings or Issues 


I generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of my professional relationship and my responses were not a condition to my 
retention. 


Other Matters 


With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, I made certain inquiries of 
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the 
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method 
of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation 
to my audit of the financial statements. I compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the 
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 


This information is intended solely for the use of management and the Board of Directors of Sweetwater Springs 
Water District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 


Very truly yours, 


 


Michael A Celentano 
Certified Public Accountant 


November 1, 2018 


 


 





























































































































		Item V-A - Res 18-16 Accepting the FY 2017-18 Audit

		Item V-A.1 - RES 18-16 -- Accepting Audit for FYE June 30, 2018

		Item V-A.2 - Internal Control Comments 6-30-18

		Item V-A.3 - Governance 6-30-18

		Item V-A.4 - FINAL Audit Report 6-30-18






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 6, 2018  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE REVIEW OF THE DISTRICT'S CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM     


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation on the review of the 2018-2024 Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP). and provide direction to staff. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Typically, every year we discuss the District's multi-year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
program at the December meeting including a discussion of what has happened in the past 
year and what changes, if any, are needed to the program approved the prior year.  In the 
past two and a half years we have changed our minds on our approach to the CIP as we 
learned more of our financial situation and of our capital project needs.  We first decided to 
build the River Road/Old River Road Project in full to replace the aging cast iron pipe that 
supplies water to Rio Nido, and we secured a USDA loan/bond to pay for it.  We slowed down 
on that approach because the USDA bond did not include the grant we were hoping for.  We 
decided to self fund the River Road/Old River Road project, split the project into three parts,  
and agreed to construct the project over five years, skipping projects in alternate years.  Then 
in the Spring of 2017 we realized our financial situation would be improved if we used the 
USDA bond so we recombined Phases 2 and 3 and made that the 2018 CIP using the USDA 
bond to fund it.  That project is now completed and we are working on replacing the green 
sand filter at the Monte Rio Treatment Facility as our 2019 CIP.   
 
One change from last year's discussion is that the USDA bond funds did not come available 
until the completion of the project and thus we have needed to use interim financing.  That 
has had no bearing on the completion of the project and the District's overall financial position, 
but it has added some extra costs and quite a bit of extra background, non-construction-
related work to the project.     
 
The 2019-2024 CIP approved at the December 2017 Board meeting (Table 1) was result of 
these experiences and a comprehensive staff and Board review of the District's capital 
projects, augmented by the work of the ad hoc CIP Review Subcommittee.   Items that the 
Subcommittee addressed included the selection criteria listed below:   
 


 Improved water quality  
 Water losses  
 Potential Liability    


 Age of Pipe 
 Pipe Material 
 Terrain  







2019-2024 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 2  
December 6, 2018 
 


 


 Difficulty of Repair/Maintenance  
 Storage and pressure zone requirements  
 Costs per service  


 
The projects included in last year's CIP were rescheduled based on our information on 
available funds and expected costs of projects at the time last year.  As in every year we 
redo the capital planning model, as shown in Table 3,  updating the model to include FY18 
actual budget, proposed UAL funding, and the latest CIP costs placed in the year 
occurring.   A review of Table 3 shows that holding to this schedule the District will go 
below District Policy in FY 2020 and FY 2021 and it will be tight to make debt payments at 
the beginning of those fiscal years  - cash flow would be an issue.   
 
An alternative would be to push the 2020 CIP to 2021 and skip doing a major capital 
project in FY 2020 and 2022. This will allow two things (at least): the District will have 
more time to build up reserves and the new management (new GM and new Field 
Manager) will have a year to consider the District approach to capital projects - they may 
have ideas for a different approach than what is presented in current District plans.   
Following this schedule, the same projects will be completed by FY 2024 and the District 
will be in a similar, comfortable reserve position with no cash flow issues in the 
intervening years.  The downside will be that capital projects will be pushed off some, but 
these projects do not have the urgency that the River Road project had for us.   
 
The FY 18-24 CIP includes construction of approximately $2.8 million of new, scheduled 
projects and $2.0 million of additional projects.   If we revise the schedule to skip 2020 
and 2022, the CIP is a realistic construction plan and keeps the District's reserves in good 
shape.  As always, we review the CIP annually and so far have made adjustments to the 
plan nearly every year.   As stated above, the new management coming in will have 
adequate time to review this program and revise if needed, or take a totally different 
approach. 
 
We have cleared up where the Guernewood Park Resort (GPR) fits in this plan - it doesn't.  
Modeling of the District's Guerneville System last year demonstrated that the GPR, if 
constructed with fire-safe materials and methods, can be served by existing District 
facilities.    
 
That leaves open the question of whether the District will add facilities to bring water 
supply to fringe areas of the District; namely upper Summit area, the upper Schoeneman 
pressure zone area and the upper Natoma Tank pressure zone area.  The District gets 
inquiries on an infrequent but regular basis about water supply to parcels in these areas 
that currently we cannot serve.   
 
If the Board agrees with the approach recommended here, we will come back at the 
January meeting with a resolution to approve the CIP with the revised schedule. 
 


 







2019-2024 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 3  
December 6, 2018 
 


 


 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District 2018-2024 CIP Projects by Year 


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost Cost/Service  Comments 
2018        


  


Phase 2 and 3, Old River Road/River 
Road (GV) - replace approximately 
4,600 ft of existing main and 58 
services on Old River Rd at Morningside 
east to the eastern section of Foothill 
Drive and include Orchard Rd and 
Foothill Blvd. $1,488,000 $25,655    


  2018 Total $1,488,000     


2019        


  


Monte Rio Treatment Plant Green Sand 
Filter Replacement. Serves Monte Rio 
system (1100 services) $250,000 $227    


  2019 Total $250,000     


2020        


  


Park Ave. (GV) replace approximately 2900 lf 
of main line on Park Ave. and McLane, 37 
services.  Loop two deadend lines. 
Replace/repair Park Ave. Tank $788,000 $21,297    


  
Cherry St. (GV) replace approximately 440 lf 
of main line, 13 services.   $126,000 $9,692    


         


  2020 Total $914,000     


2021        


  


Wright Drive main pressure zone. – (GV) 
Replace approximately 1,120 ft of existing 
mainline and 18 associated services along 
Wright Dr. and Wright Ln.   $275,000 $15,278    


  


Woodland Drive – mainline replacement. 
(GV) Replace approximately 1,900 ft of 
existing mainline and 27 associated services 
along Woodland Dr in the main pressure 
zone.   $400,000 $14,815    


  2021 Total $675,000     


2022        


  Skip Capital Project      


2023        







2019-2024 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 4  
December 6, 2018 
 


 


  


Schoeneman pressure zone- main line 
replacement. (GV)    Replace approximately 
3,000 ft of existing mainline and 47 
associated services along Highland Way, 
Sunset Ave, Woodland Dr, Laurel Way and 
Morningside Drive.  (requires completion of 
Schoeneman Tank $814,300 $17,326    


  


Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 
10,000 gallon tank with a 30,000 gallon 
storage tank.  2005 cost estimate $127,000 $2,702    


  2023 Total $941,300     


2024         


  Skip Capital Project       


          


  Total Cost of 2018-2024 Projects $4,268,300     


          


2025        


  


Wright Drive upper pressure zone. – (GV)    
Replace approximately 3,280 ft of existing 
mainline and 47 associated services along 
Wright Dr, Glenda Dr, Natoma Dr. (requires 
completion of Natoma Tank and includes 
Edgehill Booster) $870,000     


  


Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 10,000 
gallon storage tank with a 30,000 storage 
tank.   2005 cost estimate 


$190,000 


    


  2025 Total      


         


  Other Projects      


  
Highway 116 (MR) Replace approximately 
850 ft of main line.  $280,000     


  
Main St   (MR) Replace approximately 800 ft 
of mainline along Main St. $180,000     


  


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage 
tank with a nominal capacity of 
approximately 120,000 gallons at the 
District–owned site on McLane Avenue. 
Project to include relocation/ construction of 
the existing hydro-pneumatic pump station. $490,000    


  
Total Approximate Cost of Future, 
Unapproved Projects $2,010,000     


 







2019-2024 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 5  
December 6, 2018 
 


 


3% Sales Flat


FY18 Actual FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24


1 REVENUE
2 OPERATING REVENUE Flat….
3 Water Bill Revenue


4 Capital Debt Reduction Charge 279,369 287,751 296,383 305,275 314,433 323,866 404,300          


5 Total Water Sales 2,427,235 2,212,301 2,278,670 2,347,030 2,417,441 2,489,965 2,564,664


6 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,427,235 2,500,052 2,575,053 2,652,305 2,731,874 2,813,830 2,968,964


7 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 164,124 166,054 168,022 170,029 172,076 174,165 176,295


8 Total Income 2,591,359 2,666,105 2,743,075 2,822,334 2,903,951 2,987,995 3,145,259


9 EXPENSES New GM


10 877,373 894,920 942,819 961,675 980,909 1,000,527 1,020,537


11 320,503 370,118 381,222 392,658 404,438 416,571 429,068


12 SALARY & BENEFITS 1,197,876 1,265,039 1,324,041 1,354,334 1,385,347 1,417,098 1,449,606


13 Unfunded Liability Increase 112,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
14 SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase = 2%


15 SERVICES & SUPPLIES 472,335 497,059 502,029 507,049 512,120 517,241 522,413


16 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,782,211 1,862,097 1,926,070 1,961,383 1,997,467 2,034,339 2,072,019


17 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $809,148 $804,008 $817,005 $860,951 $906,484 $953,656 $1,073,239


18 FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 61,223 60,000 20,000 60,000 20,000 60,000 20,000


17 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


19 Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 278,615 287,751        296,383        305,275           314,433          323,866         404,300          


20 Tfers to CIRF 320,000 340,000        380,000        380,000           460,000          450,000         530,000          


21 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 638,615 667,751 716,383 725,275 814,433 813,866 974,300


22 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 109,310 76,258 80,622 75,676 72,051 79,790 78,939


23 Capital Budget
24 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
25 Net Operating Revenues** 429,310 416,258 460,622 455,676 532,051 529,790 608,939


26 Assessments 764,552 764,552 764,552 764,552 764,552 764,552 764,552


27 Capital Debt Reduction Charge*** 278,615      287,751        296,383        305,275           314,433          323,866         404,300          


28 Capital Interest 17,075 10,000          10,000          10,000             10,000            10,000           10,000            


29 Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 320,000 590,000        110,000          370,000         


30 USDA Loan 1,535,000    get loan funds FY19


31 TOTAL REVENUE 3,344,552 1,478,561 2,121,558 1,535,503 1,731,036 1,998,208 1,787,792


32 State Loan Done


33 Total Debt Payments 1,010,758   1,072,758     1,072,758     1,072,758        926,019          926,019         926,019          


34 CIP 2018 rpl GSF 2020 CIP 2021 CIP No Project 2023 CIP No Project


35 Annual CIP 1,535,000 250,000        914,000        675,000           941,300         


36 In-House Construction Projects, etc. 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000


37 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,585,758 1,362,758 2,026,758 1,787,758 966,019 1,907,319 966,019


38 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 758,793 115,802 94,799 -252,255 765,017 90,889 821,772


39 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


40 Ending Funds ab District Policy (DP) 1,078,532   1,194,334     699,134        446,879           1,101,895       822,784         1,644,557       


41 Funds ab DP and Debt Payments 67,774        121,576        (373,625)       (625,880)          175,876          (103,235)        718,537          


42 NET CAPITAL FUNDING**** 478,793      405,802        458,799        462,745           695,017          702,189         861,772          


*  Starting values based on actual FY17 EOY


** =Transfer to CIRF plus net operating surplus


*** =Transfers from CDRC


**** =Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + CDRC + Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments


EXPENSES


Total Benefits


Table 3.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL 
BUDGET SUMMARY  Skip CIP in FY22


Total Salary







2019-2024 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 6  
December 6, 2018 
 


 


3% Sales Flat


FY18 
Actual FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24


1 REVENUE
2 OPERATING REVENUE Flat….
3 Water Bill Revenue


4 Capital Debt Reduction Charg 279,369 287,751 296,383 305,275 314,433 323,866 404,300        


5 Total Water Sales 2,427,235 2,212,301 2,278,670 2,347,030 2,417,441 2,489,965 2,564,664


6 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,427,235 2,500,052 2,575,053 2,652,305 2,731,874 2,813,830 2,968,964


7 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 164,124 166,054 168,022 170,029 172,076 174,165 176,295


8 Total Income 2,591,359 2,666,105 2,743,075 2,822,334 2,903,951 2,987,995 3,145,259


9 EXPENSES New GM


10 877,373 894,920 942,819 961,675 980,909 1,000,527 1,020,537


11 320,503 370,118 381,222 392,658 404,438 416,571 429,068


12 SALARY & BENEFITS 1,197,876 1,265,039 1,324,041 1,354,334 1,385,347 1,417,098 1,449,606


13 Unfunded Liability Increase 112,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
14 SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase = 2%


15 SERVICES & SUPPLIES 472,335 497,059 502,029 507,049 512,120 517,241 522,413


16 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,782,211 1,862,097 1,926,070 1,961,383 1,997,467 2,034,339 2,072,019


17 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $809,148 $804,008 $817,005 $860,951 $906,484 $953,656 $1,073,239


18 FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 61,223 60,000 20,000 60,000 20,000 60,000 20,000


17 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


19 Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 278,615 287,751      296,383      305,275          314,433        323,866       404,300        


20 Tfers to CIRF 320,000 340,000      380,000      380,000          460,000        450,000       530,000        


21 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 638,615 667,751 716,383 725,275 814,433 813,866 974,300


22 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 109,310 76,258 80,622 75,676 72,051 79,790 78,939


23 Capital Budget
24 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
25 Net Operating Revenues** 429,310 416,258 460,622 455,676 532,051 529,790 608,939


26 Assessments 764,552 764,552 764,552 764,552 764,552 764,552 764,552


27 Capital Debt Reduction Charge*** 278,615    287,751      296,383      305,275          314,433        323,866       404,300        


28 Capital Interest 17,075 10,000        10,000        10,000            10,000          10,000         10,000          


29 Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 320,000 590,000      110,000        370,000       


30 USDA Loan 1,535,000  get loan funds FY19


31 TOTAL REVENUE 3,344,552 1,478,561 2,121,558 1,535,503 1,731,036 1,998,208 1,787,792


32 State Loan Done


33 Total Debt Payments 1,010,758 1,072,758   1,072,758   1,072,758       926,019        926,019       926,019        


34 CIP 2018 rpl GSF No Project 2021 CIP No Project 2023 CIP 2024 CIP


35 Annual CIP 1,535,000 250,000      914,000          675,000       941,300        


36 In-House Construction Projects, etc. 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000


37 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,585,758 1,362,758 1,112,758 2,026,758 966,019 1,641,019 1,907,319


38 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 758,793 115,802 1,008,799 -491,255 765,017 357,189 -119,528


39 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


40 Ending Funds ab District Policy (DP) 1,078,532 1,194,334   1,613,134   1,121,879       1,776,895     1,764,084    1,644,557     


41 Funds ab DP and Debt Payments 67,774      121,576      540,375      49,120            850,876        838,065       718,537        


42 NET CAPITAL FUNDING**** 478,793    405,802      458,799      462,745          695,017        702,189       861,772        


*  Starting values based on actual FY17 EOY


** =Transfer to CIRF plus net operating surplus


*** =Transfers from CDRC


**** =Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + CDRC + Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments


EXPENSES


Total Benefits


BUDGET SUMMARY  
Table 4.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL 


Total Salary


Skip CIP in 
FY20


 





		Meeting Date: December 6, 2018 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: December 6, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2018 CIP 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report from the General Manager on the 
completion of the 2018 CIP and filing of the Notice of Completion, and provide direction 
to staff. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The FY 2018 CIP, which replaced approximately 4,600 ft of existing main and 58 
services on Old River Rd at Morningside east to the eastern section of Foothill Boulevard 
and includes Orchard Rd and Foothill Boulevard has been completed.  At the last 
meeting the Board approved Resolution 18-15 which authorized the General Manager to 
sign and record the Notice of Completion when notified by the Project Engineers, 
Coastland Engineering (Coastland), that Piazza Construction had satisfactorily 
completed all elements of the project.  The NOC was filed on November 8, 2018.   
 
The overall expenditures associated with this project have included: 
     Original  Actual 
     Budget   Expenditures 
Construction Contract   $ 1,039,962.70  $ 924,091.25 
Construction Contingency  $    104,000.00  $       832.49  
Totals     $ 1,143,962.70  $ 924,923.74 
 
As can be seen above, the Project came in at approximately $116,000 less than the 
awarded contract amount, not including the contingency.  Kudos to Piazza and 
Coastland for keeping our costs down.   
 
The work done by Piazza has been good and District customers in the affected areas are 
seeing better water quality, more reliable service, better fire protection, and more 
consistent water flow.  The completed project, combined with the 2017 CIP, will also 
secure the water supply for the Rio Nido area as this aging cast iron pipe was the sole 
supply to Rio Nido, was very old, and subject to catastrophic failure in a location (busy 
River Road and Old River Road) that would be a difficult emergency fix.   
 
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 6, 2018  
 
SUBJECT:  2019 ORGANIZATION MEETING / BOARD ELECTIONS   


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Elect Board officers for the coming year.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
District policy requires the election of officers for the coming year at the 
December Board meeting unless there is a change in the Board due to the 
November election.  District policy states: "5000.50 Annual Organizational 
Meeting: The Board of Directors shall hold an annual organizational meeting 
at its regular meeting in December, except in years when new Directors are 
elected to the Board at the November regular election and seated after the 
regular December meeting.  In those years, the annual organization meeting 
will be held at the regular January meeting.  At this annual meeting the 
Board will select and appoint officers, as described in sections 4050.11 
through 4050.13, from among its members to serve during the coming 
calendar year."  Sections 4005.11 through 4050.13 describe the positions of 
President, Vice President, and Financial Coordinator.   
 
This year there are no new Directors to be seated after the December 
meeting, thus our elections occur at the December meeting.   
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: December 6, 2018 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 6, 2018   
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in October were 21,351 units (49.0 AF, (Monte 
Rio cycle) and production was 55.7 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and production 
were lower this month (50.2 AF and 60.1 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage 
continues in the dropping trend.   Figure 1 shows sales, production and % difference for the 
separate systems.     


 
2. Leaks:  In October we had 11 total leaks and spent 60 man-hours on them.   That's more 


leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and more leaks but fewer man-hours 
compared to October one year ago (9 and 73).  Figure 2 shows service and main leaks 
separately with a total leaks line as well.     


   
3. Guerneville Rainfall:  We're starting out the rainy season a little low but currently in a 


series of storms as I write this.  This series will get us closer to average; so far we're below.  
But it's early yet.           


 
4. River Lane Property Sale:  Nearby property owners have started a CEQA lawsuit against 


the Open Space decision to approve funding for a conservation easement for this property.  
The District is not directly involved and we will stay informed.   


 
5. Monte Rio Trails Project:  No new news on this.   
  
6. 2018 CIP:  This will be discussed on the Administrative Agenda. 
 
7. USDA Bond Closing: This has been postponed until December 20 so that  all the needed 


documentation can be reviewed and approved by USDA.  It looks like the final amount of the 
bond will be $1.535 million and include some costs from the 2017 CIP to meet that total 
amount as all the costs of the 2018 CIP were approximately $317,000 below the revised 
bond amount.   


 
8. Annual Flood Response Planning Meeting:  This meeting was held on November 28 and 


I attended.  The National Weather Service expects wetter than normal December and 
January, normal or drier after that.  The winter should be warmer than normal.  I was 
disappointed that there was no review of what happened two years ago, but not surprised.  
At the meeting I stated the need to get correct information out; at the event two years ago, 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
December 6, 2018 
 


there was incorrect information on our water supply - that it was unsafe to drink and we 
need to get the correct information out.   


 
9. In-House Construction Projects: Three in-house construction projects were reported for 


November: reset valve box on Neeley Rd. (4 man-hours), relocated meter on Canyon 3 Rd. 
(11.25 man-hours), replaced 2 inch main with 1 " poly inserted into main for residence on 
Sweetwater Springs Rd. (48) man-hours.      


 
 
  
10.   Gantt Chart: For December the Gantt Chart shows discussion and review of the District 


Capital Improvement Program - that is on the agenda.  It also has a red box for water rights 
- the SCWA petition to renew their water rights to the Russian River Flow.  I believe that got 
set back by the fires a year ago; I haven't anything since the last hearings on this project 
two years ago.             


 
 


 


Figure 1.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month 
Moving Averages, SSWD Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


Sep-
17


Mar-
18


Sep-
18


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
er


ce
n


t 
L


o
st


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


`







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
December 6, 2018 
 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Mar-
09


Sep-
09


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


Sep-
17


Mar-
18


Sep-
18


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


-


10.00


20.00


30.00


40.00


50.00


60.00


70.00


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ar
y


Feb
ru


ar
y


M
ar


ch
Apr


il
M


ay
Ju


ne Ju
ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
te


m
be


r


P
re


ci
p


it
at


io
n


 (
in


)


Guerneville Avg


Dryest (1977)


07-17 Avg


2017


2018


2019


-







 
May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 FY20+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Budget Preparation
        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2018 CIP Phase Award of Contract


        2018 CIP Construction Starts


·        USDA Bond


        2019 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


District Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: December 6, 2018  



